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FIGURE 9.3 (Continued)
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One way to ensure a level playing field is to require all the manufacturers to submit with their
bids letters of design certification. A letter of this kind should clearly state the builder’s name, build-
ing configuration, governing codes and standards to be followed, and every load and load combina-
tion the building will be designed for. The letter should bear a seal and signature of a registered
engineer employed by the manufacturer.

Another critical item to be checked in the letter is the design roof snow or live load, a common
target of manipulation by some manufacturers seeking an advantage over the competition. (More on
this subject in the next chapter.) Insist on seeing the actual design roof load, not the “ground snow
load,” which is only a starting point for further calculations. If roof live load, not snow, controls the
design, the letter should indicate the actual loading used to design various members and any live load
reductions taken by the manufacturer.

Also, design wind and seismic loads and, especially, collateral loads should be clearly stated in the
letter. Verify that proper lateral drift and vertical deflection criteria will be used: A manufacturer who
“overlooks” these will have a major cost advantage over the others. If too little—or too vague—infor-
mation is provided in the letter, do not hesitate to ask for a written clarification of any murky issues.

A sample letter of design certification is reproduced in Fig. 9.4 from Ref. 2. Note that the letter
identifies the specific edition dates for the governing standards and codes, a fact especially impor-
tant for the AISI Specification, as explained in Chap. 5. This and other items most commonly lack-
ing in clarity in design certification letters are highlighted in boldface.

To help ensure quality of both design and fabrication for a critical project, the owner may elect to
deal only with the manufacturers whose facilities have passed AISC Quality Certification program,
Category MB. While it is true that there are plenty of capable manufacturers that are not so certified,
limiting the pool of bidders to those with the designation greatly simplifies the comparison.

Carefully compare the warranties. Will the warranty called for by the contract documents be pro-
vided? A standard warranty for framing components is 1 year from the shipment date. Warranties for
metal roofing are available up to 20 years and depend on the material.

Check the builder’s qualifications, too. Since it is the builder who signs the contract with the
owner, this check is at least as important as comparing the manufacturers. Have the builders worked
on similar projects? Do their references confirm their ability to deliver on time and within budget? Are
they satisfied with the quality of their work? Are they financially stable and bonded? (Who hasn’t
heard about a contractor going belly-up in the middle of a job?) Are they members of the Metal
Building Contractors & Erectors Association? Are they certified by the manufacturer? Investigate how
the builder tends to approach any out-of-scope items. Are the “extras” priced reasonably or become a
source of enrichment?

Find out if the builder (or the president in a large construction company) is personally involved
with the projects: The best builders are. For example, the president of Span Construction and
Engineering, the Metal Construction News’ “1994 Top Metal Builder,” personally inspects every
major metal roof completed by the company, investing up to 1�2 day in each such “walk.” In his
words, such inspection lends credibility to the 20-year weathertight warranty.3

The selection process ends with signing of the contract documents by the owner and the builder.
The contract documents may include the agreement, general and supplementary conditions, draw-
ings, and specifications. The contract should assign a clear responsibility for various facets of design,
fabrication, erection, code compliance, and permitting. Except for very small and simple buildings,
we recommend that the AIA contract forms be used, rather than a one-sheet proposal and contract
form similar to that of Fig. 9.3. (Incidentally, the MBCEA contract requires owners to pay a penalty
equal to 25 percent of the contract price if they fail to proceed with the work after signing the con-
tract.) The contract may reference MBMA Common Industry Practices to establish a scope of work.

Some contract provisions may lead to protracted negotiations. If discussions over a truly impor-
tant provision are deadlocked, dealing with the lowest bidder might be abandoned, if permitted by
law, and the no. 2 bidder invited to negotiate. In this tense situation, some owners in their zeal to
build may rely on verbal promises instead of ironed-out written agreements, forgetting the Samuel
Goldwyn quip about an oral contract not being worth the paper it is written on.

The manufacturers might be more open to negotiations if contacted during their slowest months
of the year—November and December.
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